CITY OF BELLAIRE TEXAS

BUILDING AND STANDARDS COMMISSION

JUNE 28, 2017

ouncil Chamber	Regular Session	7:00 PM
	7008 S. RICE AVENUE BELLAIRE, TX 77401	
Chair	Commissioner	
Chair Laura Thurmond	Commissioner Mike Baker	
		Commissioner
Laura Thurmond	Mike Baker	Commissioner Charles Formica
Laura Thurmond Commissioner	Mike Baker Vice Chair	

<u>Mission Statement:</u> The City of Bellaire is dedicated to outstanding quality service and facilities to ensure an open, progressive, and secure community.

I. REGULAR SESSION

- A. Call to Order
- **B.** Announcement of Quorum
- C. Rules for Public Comment
 - 1. Sign up forms will be available at all Regular and Special meetings for registering the names of members of the Public who wish to either: i) speak on an agenda item, provided such items have not been the subject of a prior public hearing; or ii) make a general comment related to the Commission business. These forms will be given to the Secretary prior to the start of the meeting so that the person's name can be called to address the Commission at the appropriate time.
 - 2. Public Comments on agenda items will be made at the time an agenda item appears in the Order of Business and before the Commission's consideration of that item.
 - **3.** Public Comments of a general nature shall be made at the time designated by the Order of Business.
 - 4. All public comments shall be limited to six (6) minutes per speaker with extensions of two (2) minute increments as approved by a majority vote of Commission members present.
 - 5. Public Comment at Workshop meetings will be allowed at the discretion of the Chair. Any comments will be limited as described in Article IV Sec 8.

D. Approval or Correction of the Minutes

1. Building and Standards Commission - Regular Session - Apr 26, 2017 7:00 PM

E. Public Comment

- F. Report from Building Official
- G. Reports of Committees and Communications
 - 1. Communications to Commission members outside of posted meetings
 - 2. Committee Reports
 - 3. Reports from Staff other than the Building Official
- H. Old Business

I. New Business

1. Consideration of a proposed addition to Chapter 9, Buildings, Article II-A, Flood Damage Prevention, to include a definition of "Base Flood Elevation" within Division 2, Section 9-70.5, Definitions.

- 2. The Chair shall recognize any Commissioner who wishes to bring New Business to the attention of the Commission. Consideration of New Business shall be for the limited purpose of determining whether the matter is appropriate for inclusion on a future agenda of the Commission or referral to Staff for investigation.
- J. Public Hearings
- K. Announcements & Comments by Commissioners
- L. Adjournment



CITY OF BELLAIRE TEXAS

BUILDING AND STANDARDS COMMISSION

APRIL 26, 2017

Regular Session

7:00 PM

7008 S. RICE AVENUE BELLAIRE, TX 77401

I. REGULAR SESSION

A. Call to Order

Chairman Thurmond called the meeting to order at 7:05 PM.

B. Announcement of Quorum

Chairman Thurmond announced that a quorum was present, consisting of the following members:

Attendee Name	Title	Status	Arrived
Laura Thurmond	Chairman	Present	
Paul Katz	Commissioner	Present	
Burt Martin	Commissioner	Absent	
Mike Baker	Commissioner	Present	
Danny Spencer	Vice Chairman	Present	
Lee Hampton	Commissioner	Present	
Charles Formica	Commissioner	Present	
William Davidson	Building Official	Present	
ChaVonne Sampson	Development Services Manager	Present	
Ashley Parcus	Secretary	Present	
David R. Montague	Council Member	Present	

C. Rules for Public Comment

Chairman Thurmond mentioned that the Rules for Public Comment are listed on the agenda.

- 1. Sign up forms will be available at all Regular and Special meetings for registering the names of members of the Public who wish to either: i) speak on an agenda item, provided such items have not been the subject of a prior public hearing; or ii) make a general comment related to the Commission business. These forms will be given to the Secretary prior to the start of the meeting so that the person's name can be called to address the Commission at the appropriate time.
- 2. Public Comments on agenda items will be made at the time an agenda item appears in the Order of Business and before the Commission's consideration of that item.
- 3. Public Comments of a general nature shall be made at the time designated by the Order of Business.

Page 1

- 4. All public comments shall be limited to six (6) minutes per speaker with extensions of two (2) minute increments as approved by a majority vote of Commission members present.
- 5. Public Comment at Workshop meetings will be allowed at the discretion of the Chair. Any comments will be limited as described in Article IV Sec 8.

D. Approval or Correction of the Minutes

1. Building and Standards Commission - Regular Session - Mar 22, 2017 7:00 PM

RESULT:	APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER:	Mike Baker, Commissioner
SECONDER:	Lee Hampton, Commissioner
AYES:	Thurmond, Katz, Baker, Spencer, Hampton, Formica
ABSENT:	Martin

E. Public Comment

There was no public comment.

F. Report from Building Official

1. Update on the City of Bellaire's Spring 2017 Builder's Breakfast

William Davidson, Building Official-Mr. Davidson informed the Commission that the City held a Builder's Breakfast to review newly adopted ordinances, as well as codes that staff felt were not being followed as they should be. He added that 21 people registered for the breakfast, and 16 of those 21 were actually in attendance. Mr. Davidson stated that the the Commission was represented at the breakfast, as Chairman Thurmond and Commissioner Hampton were in attendance as builders. He mentioned that the City did not include the Commission as a whole because of the fact that the agenda was not being publicly posted. Mr. Davidson stated that he felt as though it was a successful meeting with individuals that represent the regular community of builders that work in Bellaire. He also informed the Commission that the City was recently visited by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEO), which consisted of an audit of the City's programs, including the storm water pollution prevention guidelines. He added that he had also met with the Public Works Department to see what they have in place for infrastrucutre projects, and shared the concerns that the Commission has addressed regarding construction sites in the City. The Assistant Director of Public Works agreed that the existing informational page on the City's website should be relocated so that it is easier to find. He also mentioned that a number has been set up where people can call to report violations of the stormwater pollution prevention guidelines, and that Public Works has a process set in place for any complaints regarding City projects or construction projects.

ChaVonne Sampson, Development Services Manager-Ms. Sampson added that all new home construction and new construction builders were invited to the Builder's Breakfast. She stated that the invitation went out to about 35 people, of which about 50% showed up. She reiterated that staff reviewed ordinances that have been recently adopted, as well as ones that have been in place for while but may be overlooked by the builders. Ms. Sampson mentioned that they also talked about some changes that might be coming in the near future, with regard to a more

automated process for scheduling inspections and receiving results. She agreed that it was a successful meeting.

Commissioner Formica asked if there were any issues that came up during the breakfast.

Mr. Davidson informed the Commission that any questions that came up were dealing with policies that were previously in place, but have been amended in some way. He added that there were no problems with the builders understanding the new codes.

Chairman Thurmond stated that silt fencing, dumpsters, and perimeter fencing, which are all topics that the Commission has taken an interest in during recent years, were discussed at the breakfast. She mentioned that the presentation was done by PowerPoint and was very well thought out. Chairman Thurmond stated that everything seemed to be well received by the builders and that there were no a lot of questions. She did have some concerns that those in attendance were of the upper echolon of the building community and that those builders who tend to violate the codes were not in attendance. Chairman Thurmond mentioned that one of the things that got the most discussion was the lack of technology when it comes to ordering and conducting inspections, and stated that it seems like a worthwhile endeavor.

Mr. Davidson stated that as a follow up to that meeting, additional materials have been requested and will be sent out. He added that he will also be including the flyer on stormwater pollution prevention that was provided by Vice Chairman Spencer.

Chairman Thurmond informed Commissioner Katz that the crawlspace regulations were also discussed and there were no issues that came up. She added that from the banter in the room, most builders have switched over to the spray applied insulation. Chairman Thurmond mentioned that there was also a discussion on enforcement and the fact that the City is receiving more help on the inspection side. She asked Mr. Davidson to elaborate a little on that.

Mr. Davidson stated that one of the City's contract inspectors has additional staff that are doing spot checks on the weekends to make sure that construction sites are kept up even when he is not in the office. He added that a \$50 re-inspection fee now applies to any failed inspection that is caused by a violation of a city ordinance or a messy job site. Mr. Davidson informed the Commission that Development Services has also started working with the Fire Department in an effort to keep construction sites clean. He stated that any time they respond to a call and notice a messy job site nearby they will tag it as deficient and Development Services will be notified so that a follow up inspection can be done.

2. Update on the Commission's letter to the City Manager regarding the compliance and enforcement of SWPPP codes.

Staff informed the Commission that the letter had been given to the City Manager, who is in the process of reviewing it. It was also noted that a lot of the concerns that were expressed in the letter are already being addressed as a result of the TCEQ audit.

Mr. Davidson stated that he has not spoken to the City Manager about the letter yet, but that he is confident that Mr. Hofmann would be getting with him within the next week or so to discuss it.

G. Reports of Committees and Communications

1. Communications to Commission members outside of posted meetings

There were no communications to report.

2. Committee Reports

There were no committee reports.

3. Reports from Staff other than the Building Official

Ms. Sampson informed the Commission that FEMA has made some updates to their drainage regulations and that she would be taking a look at the City's drainage ordinance to determine what needs to be revised in order to match the FEMA language. She added that it would be brought to the Commission in the near future.

H. Old Business

There was no old business.

I. New Business

There was no new business.

1. The Chair shall recognize any Commissioner who wishes to bring New Business to the attention of the Commission. Consideration of New Business shall be for the limited purpose of determining whether the matter is appropriate for inclusion on a future agenda of the Commission or referral to Staff for investigation.

There was no new business brought to the attention of the Commission.

J. Public Hearings

There were no public hearings.

K. Announcements & Comments by Commissioners

Commissioner Katz asked if there were any updates on sidewalks and how it was going to be determined which side of the street sidewalks were to be installed on.

Mr. Davidson explained that he doesn't believe a decision has been reached on the City's installation of sidewalks. He added that the sidewalk study may or may not have been completed, but that all new construction requires that sidewalks be installed, regardless of what side of the street it is. Mr. Davidson mentioned that he has gotten two phone calls this week regarding orphan sidewalks and he hopes that an infrastructure project to connect the sidewalks happens sooner than later.

Council Member Montague reiterated that there are three avenues for getting sidewalks installed throughout the City. First, there is now a regulation in place that they must be installed in front of all new houses. Second, the Rebuild Bellaire Bond includes funding for a City project to install them on at least one side of all streets. Third, there is money in this year's budget committed to connecting orphan sidwalks on certain streets that are selected. He added that the Community Pathways Plan will also factor into this initiative. Council Member Montague mentioned that the opening of Evelyn's Park has also drawn a lot of attention to the importance of crosswalks and bike and pedestrian safety. Commissioner Formica asked if FEMA has finished reviewing the City's floodplain.

Ms. Sampson explained that the City is working with FEMA to see if any updates can be made to the map based upon the recent drainage study that was completed, as well as some other requirements that will be put into place.

Vice Chairman Spencer asked for clarification that the Braes Bayou project was going to be finished in 2018.

Chairman Thurmond stated that she thought he was correct.

Mr. Davidson stated that the isn't sure if it is on schedule to be finished in 2018, but that once it is completed, it will definitely have a positive impact on the flood map. He added that at this point, the assumption should be that the current flood map will be in place for the forseeable future.

L. Adjournment

Motion: a motion was made by Commissioner Formica and seconded by Commissioner Baker to adjourn the Regular Meeting.

Vote: the motion carried on a vote of 6-0.

The meeting adjourned at 7:29 PM.

Building and Standards Commission Council Chamber, First Floor of City Hall Bellaire, TX 77401



Meeting: 06/28/17 07:00 PM Department: Development Services Category: Amendment Department Head: John McDonald DOC ID: 2313

SCHEDULED ACTION ITEM (ID # 2313)

Item Title:

Consideration of a proposed addition to Chapter 9, Buildings, Article II-A, Flood Damage Prevention, to include a definition of "Base Flood Elevation" within Division 2, Section 9-70.5, Definitions.

Background/Summary:

Item Summary:

In order to remain compliant with the Federal Emergency Management Agency's (FEMA) ordinance updates, a definition for "Base Flood Elevation (BFE)" must be added to Section 9-70.5 of the City of Bellaire Code of Ordinances.

Recommendation:

The director recommends the approval of the update by the Commission.

ATTACHMENTS:

• Sec._9_70.5.___Definitions Update (PDF)

Sec. 9-70.5. - Definitions.

Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this article shall be interpreted to give them the meaning they have in common usage and to give this article its most reasonable application.

- (1) Alluvial fan flooding means flooding occurring on the surface of an alluvial fan or similar landform which originates at the apex and is characterized by high-velocity flows; active processes of erosion, sediment transport, and deposition; and unpredictable flow paths.
- (2) Apex means a point on an alluvial fan or similar landform below which the flow path of the major stream that formed the fan becomes unpredictable and alluvial fan flooding can occur.
- (3) Appeal means a request for a review of the floodplain administrator's interpretation of any provision of this article or a request for a variance.
- (4) Appurtenant structure means a structure that is on the same parcel of property as the principal structure to be insured and the use of which is incidental to the use of the principal structure.
- (5) Area of future conditions flood hazard means the land area that would be inundated by the one percent annual chance (100-year) flood based on future conditions hydrology.
- (6) Area of shallow flooding means a designated AO, AH, or VO zone on a community's flood insurance rate map (FIRM) with a one percent chance or greater annual chance of flooding to an average depth of one to three feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist, where the path of flooding is unpredictable and where velocity flow may be evident. Such flooding is characterized by ponding or sheet flow.
- (7) Area of special flood hazard is the land in the floodplain within a community subject to a one percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year. The area may be designated as zone A on the flood hazard boundary map (FHBM). After detailed ratemaking has been completed in preparation for the publication of the FIRM, zone A usually is refined into zones A, AE, AH, AO, A1-99, VO, V1-30, VE or V.
- (8) Base flood means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year.
- (8)(9) Base flood elevation (BFE) The elevation shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and found in the accompanying Flood Insurance Study (FIS) for Zones A, AE, AH, A-1-A30, AR, V1-V30, or VE that indicates the water surface elevation resulting from the flood that has a 1% chance of equaling or exceeding that level in any given year-also called the Base Flood.
- (9)(10) Basement means any area of the building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all sides.
- (10)(11) Breakaway wall means a wall that is not part of the structural support of the building and is intended through its design and construction to collapse under specific lateral loading forces, without causing damage to the elevated portion of the building or supporting foundation system.
- (11)(12) Critical feature means an integral and readily identifiable part of a flood protection system, without which the flood protection provided by the entire system would be compromised.
- (12)(13) Development means any man-made change in improved and unimproved real estate, including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations or storage of equipment or materials.
- (13)(14) Elevated building means a non-basement building: (i) built, in the case of a building in zones A1-30, AE, A A99, AO, AH, B, C, X, and D, to have the top of the elevated floor, or in the case of a building in zones V1-30, VE, or V, to have the bottom of the lowest horizontal structure members of the elevated floor elevated above the ground level by means of pilings, columns

Page 1